
City of Barre, VT 

Regular Meeting of the 

Barre City Planning Commission – Special Meeting 

Thursday, October 10, 2024 AT 5:30 PM 
 

Participation:  Fully Remote for this meeting 
Join Zoom Meeting 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83132944524?pwd=OY7bpA4Xp6W6PoMaXOCjgyinPLafJx.1  
 

Meeting ID: 831 3294 4524 

Passcode: 381609 

AGENDA 
 

Page 

No. 

Agenda 

Item # 
Description 

 1 Call to Order 

 2 Adjustments to the Agenda 

 3 Public comment (for something not on the agenda) 

2 4 Approval of Minutes: for the September 12, 2024 meeting 

 5 Old Business 

 6 New Business 

4  
Encore Renewable Energy: present/discuss the proposed 107 Allen 

Street Battery Energy Storage Project 

25  Municipal Plan:  Review Section 2 Housing 

 7 Confirmation of next meeting date of November 14, 2024 

 8 Staff updates – as needed 

 9 Roundtable 

 10 Adjourn 

 

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 1

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83132944524?pwd=OY7bpA4Xp6W6PoMaXOCjgyinPLafJx.1


Barre City Planning Commission  

September 12, 2024 Meeting Minutes 

 

Present: David Sichel (Chair), Becky Wigg (Vice Chair), Joe Reil (Secretary),  

Rosemary Averill, Caitlin Corkins, Wendy Ducey, Raylene Meunier 

Absent: None 

Staff: Janet Shatney (Director of Planning, Permitting & Assessing) 

Visitors: Reuben MacMartin and Niki Sabado from the Central Vermont Regional Planning Commission 

(CVRPC) 

 

1. Call to Order. 

5:30pm. 

2. Adjustments to the Agenda. 

None. 

3. Approval of Minutes. 

a. July 25, 2024. 

Wigg moved to approve, Meunier seconded, unanimous in favor. 

4. Public comment (for something not on the agenda). 

None. 

5. Old Business. 

a. Any review or comments from the 2 public hearings for Zoning and Flood Hazard Rules 

work with the City Council 

Sichel noted that City Council approved interim zoning changes and they will be in effect 

soon with a reminder that these are temporary and will need to be reviewed again in the 

future. 

First and second reading of Flood Hazard ordinance were approved with a minor clerical 

error. 

6. New Business. 

a. TOD Raise Grant: (Transit-oriented development, Rebuilding American Infrastructure with 

Sustainability and Equity). New downtown planning area development plan introduction 

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 2



Shatney noted that City Manager applied for grant and we now need to take action on it. 

Introduced Reuben MacMartin and Niki Sabado from the CVRPC and indicated they'd met 

previously for initial discussions and to begin considering what area to look at. 

MacMartin introduced himself, noting that the Chittenden County Regional Planning 

Commission (CCRPC) is the main grant requester and CVRPC is included as a sub-

recipient, and that Niki Sabado will be the lead for the Barre City portion of this project. 

Sabado introduced and discussed various aspects of the grant, which is intended to provide 

opportunity for the Department of Transportation to invest in local transit-related projects, for 

various local benefits. Overall project will have impacts across the Norwest region of 

Vermont. The final design document is due in March 2025 with several public meetings to 

occur in the meantime. 

There was some questions and discussion about the types of changes that this might result 

in. MacMartin suggested some possibilities, that the final plan/deliverables would include 

guidelines on things like infill and upfill, and ways that existing spaces may be used (e.g., 

replacing unused parking). There were further questions and discussion about the proposed 

location for the study, including what areas may be appropriate to exclude or include and 

how this may interact with existing overlay districts and zoning regulations, and how this 

effort may intersect with the North Main to Summer Street Plan that VHB is working on (and 

how this plan seems to have stalled). 

A map of the city was reviewed with suggestions for how to expand the proposed location 

with further discussion to come, with consensus that the BOR area (but not surrounding 

streets) should be included. 

Next steps are to review the scope and confirm that and the boundary lines, as well as 

confirming the list of local stakeholders to involve. Sabado will work with Shatney and 

further discussion will occur in the next Planning Commission meeting. Shatney will reach 

out to VHB to confirm their status and intentions on the North Main to Summer Street plan 

and Sabado will review to see if there is interest in CVRPC using the money from that grant 

for this project. 

7. Confirm Date of Next Meeting. 

a. October 10, 2024. 

8. Staff Updates. 

Shatney discussed specific Development Review Board challenges in needing to approve 

projects based on regulations and not personal feelings and briefly discussed guidelines on 

historic structures. Other updates included in agenda packet. 

9. Round Table. 

None. 

10. Adjourn. 

6:49 pm, Reil moved to adjourn, Corkins seconded, unanimous in favor. 

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 3



Encore Renewable Energy 
Allen Street Battery Energy Storage System (BESS) Project 

Barre City Planning Commission 
October 10, 2024 

 
 
Proposed Project: a 5 Megawatt/4 Hour (i.e. 20 MWH AC) battery energy storage system (BESS) 
constructed next to Encore’s 2.2 MW AC solar project (“I Love Cows, LLC”) located at 107 Allen Street.  
Total footprint: 0.5 acres.  Estimated Project Lifetime: 25 years. 
 
System Benefits: The BESS will “soak up” excess solar generation during midday hours and discharge 
energy into Green Mountain Power’s (GMP) grid at peak hours of electricity demand (“peak shaving”).  This 
will reduce GMP’s need to purchase imported higher-cost gas-powered electricity from peaker plants in 
Massachusetts and Connecticut, which in turn will reduce upward pressure on electricity rates for GMP’s 
customers, including Barre City.  The BESS will also provide back-up electricity to the grid in case of power 
outages, improving grid reliability.  Thirdly, the BESS will help GMP regulate electrical grid voltage and 
frequency, improving grid stability. 
 
Tax Benefits:  
 - Based on Vermont Public Utility Commission regulations, the project will pay $5,000/year in property taxes 
to the City of Barre (rate of $0.25/KWH, so 20,000 KWH * $0.25 = $5,000); 
 - Based on Vermont Public Utility Commission regulations, the project will pay $10,000/year in Uniform 
Capacity Tax (into the State Education Fund) to the State of Vermont (rate of $0.50/KWH, so 20,000 KWH * 
$0.50 = $10,000). 
 
Note: this is in addition to the $29,000/year in property taxes to Barre City and $10,000/year in UCT tax to 
State of Vermont from the “I Love Cows” 2.2 MW AC solar project. 
 
Encore “Good Neighbor” Policy: Encore would like to make a $20,000 contribution to Barre as a gesture of its 
intention to be a good neighbor to the city with this BESS project.  This could go to the school system, the fire 
department or some other entity yet to be determined. 
 

Orderly Development: Overall, the Central Vermont Regional and Barre City plans loosely identify areas 
that have specific limitations, planned conservation measures, or otherwise may be unsuitable for 
development. Based on our review, no specific policies or land conservation measures were found in the 
Regional Plan or Town Plan that would be affected by the Project. Therefore, the siting of the Project as 
proposed does not conflict with the development or conservation goals and policies within these Plans: the 
Project is consistent with the character and land use at the Project site and surrounding area without impacting 
areas prioritized for conservation or protection.   Indeed, the Barre City Town Plan supports responsible 
development of renewable energy generation throughout the City, and the project is located on the Central 
Vermont RPC Solar Resources map has having “solar potential”.  Accordingly, in Encore’s judgement, the 
Allen Street Storage Project will not unduly interfere with the orderly development of the region.  

Fire Risk: Encore met with the Deputy Chief of the Barre Fire Department (BFD) and provided BESS equipment 
technical specifications.  Encore will conduct field-based orientation and training (along with the battery 
manufacturer) in system fire prevention and response for BFD staff. 

Timeline: Encore intends to submit its application for a Certificate of Public Good (CPG) to the VT Public Utility 
Commission in January 2025, with the hope of obtaining the CPG by June 2025, and starting construction by 
the end of 2025 or early 2026.  Commercial Operation is scheduled for July 2026. 

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 4



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 5



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 6



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 7



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 8



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 9



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 10



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 11



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 12



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 13



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 14



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 15



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 16



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 17



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 18



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 19



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 20



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 21



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 22



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 23



Planning Commission Packet 
Page 24



 

21 

HOUSING 

planning for housing 

Barre City recognizes that safe, attractive and affordable homes and neighborhoods are a necessary 
foundation for the health and well-being of residents and neighborhoods. To achieve our vision for a 
healthy future, Barre City needs to attract and retain residents, particularly households with 
moderate to higher incomes. The quality, cost and characteristics of homes and neighborhoods are 
the major factors people consider when choosing where to live.  The City has quality housing stock, 
as evidenced by the beautiful homes throughout the city, and is an asset to our community. 
 
Where we live is at the very core of our daily lives. Shelter is a basic human need without which no 
one can be healthy, safe or productive. The physical conditions within homes, conditions in the 
neighborhoods surrounding homes, the affordability of homes are all closely interrelated with the 
health and well-being of residents and our community as a whole. 
 
The health of our local economy is linked to the availability and affordability of housing in the city. 
To attract jobs, we need to have places for new workers to live. To revitalize our downtown, we need 
to attract new residents and expand the base of consumers that will support local businesses. The 
residential sector also drives demand for city infrastructure and services; the location and design of 
homes and neighborhoods influence the cost of providing infrastructure and services in the city. 
 
The type of residential development that occurs in a community reflects both local and regional 
market forces, as well as the influence of government policies and regulations. The city can take an 
active role in promoting housing that will contribute to making Barre City a healthier place to live. 
Policies that encourage higher-density housing within urban centers increase residents’ ability to 
walk or bike to work, school, stores and services. Enforcing building codes and inspecting rental 
housing reduces the number of residents living in unhealthy and unsafe conditions.  The City will 
need to consider increasing the number of enforcement staff with the added responsibilities of 
ordinances and their requirements. 
 

key points 

1. Changing Demographics. Demographic trends suggest that there will be increasing numbers of 
single-person households and households without children in future decades.  Many of these 
households will want a home: in a more urban setting with greater access to employment, 
services, shopping and social activities; that is smaller, less expensive, easier to maintain and 
more energy-efficient; and with convenient access to transit. In future years, we will need more 
housing in Barre City that can meet those housing needs. Many people who grew up in Barre City 
or lived in the city as young adults moved out to nearby rural communities to raise their families. 
Now ‘empty-nesters’, these residents could be attracted back to the city with the right mix of 
housing in a revitalized downtown setting. 

 
2. Existing Housing.  Existing housing in the city ranges from single family homes to large 

apartment buildings, and homes with accessory dwelling units (ADU’s).  ADU’s are often referred 
to as the “mother-in-law” apartment.  ADU’s have been allowed for many decades in the City, and 

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 25



 

22 

provide an affordable living unit for a renter or family member, and the owner to gain some 
income.  A growing trend is that more “empty-nesters” are choosing to age in place and find that 
the once-bustling home is quiet and a lot to manage.  ADU’s are allowed in the City, and must be 
located within or associated with an owner-occupied single family dwelling, and be up to 900 
square feet in size, or not to exceed 30% of the habitable floor area of the primary dwelling.  ADU’s 
provide a great means of affordable housing as well. 
 

3. Downtown Housing. Downtown and near-downtown has a limited amount of housing aside 
from a few senior and affordable housing facilities. To revitalize our downtown, we need to bring 
people back to shop, dine, work and live downtown. Adding more housing would increase the 
income generated by downtown buildings, property values and the city’s tax base. Residents 
would be ‘anchor consumers’ for downtown businesses and would keep downtown alive after 
business hours. The Vermont Downtown Program reports that the average downtown resident 
spends more than twice as much money at downtown businesses than the average person who 
works, but does not live, downtown. With limited opportunities for new single-family 
development and infill in established neighborhoods in Barre City, our downtown offers an 
excellent opportunity for substantial increases in the city’s housing stock. 

 
4. Affordable and Special Needs Housing. Barre City’s housing stock includes a large number of 

modest, single-family homes that continue to offer some of the region’s most affordable 
opportunities for homeownership. As more affluent residents left for outlying rural communities, 
our stock of higher-end and larger homes was largely converted to multi-family rentals. The 
availability of centrally located land with access to public services led to several large subsidized 
housing developments being built in Barre City during the 1970’s and ‘80’s. As a result of all these 
factors, we presently provide more than our share of the region’s affordable and special needs 
housing. Thirty-nine percent of all the subsidized apartments in Washington County are located 
in Barre City (approximately 514 units) and the subsidized units account for 12% of all housing 
in the city (the 5th highest percentage of all Vermont municipalities). 

 
5. Moderate- and Upper-Income Housing. Barre City has seen the supply of moderate- and upper-

income housing decline in recent decades. This widening gap in our housing stock has weakened 
the city’s property tax base and resulted in a loss to the local economy. The result is reduced 
resources for city services and infrastructure, including the investments that are needed to make 
Barre City a desirable place to live. We want our city to remain an affordable and attractive 
community for those working in the region - a city that is home to a diverse population. In order 
to achieve this, we need to balance our housing stock by adding middle- and higher-end units and 
ensuring that the quality of existing homes is maintained or improved. 

 
6. Housing Quality and Neighborhood Stability. More than half of Barre City’s homes were built 

before 1940 and are located in traditional, pre-war neighborhoods. These older homes and 
neighborhoods need ongoing improvement and maintenance if they are to remain healthy and 
desirable places to live. The national upheaval in the housing market after 2008 has led to higher 
rates of foreclosure and distressed residential properties being purchased by investors (often 
from other parts of the country). While there are many stable neighborhoods in Barre City, there 
is evidence that some of our neighborhoods are in transition away from homeownership towards 
rentals, and some are showing signs of decline as a result of that transition. Poor property 
management leads to the loss of neighborhood stability, which is more likely to occur if landlords 
with no connection to our community acquire a higher percentage of rental properties. 
Investment in the city’s homes and neighborhoods will have significant direct and indirect 
benefits to individual residents and families, and the community as a whole. 

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 26



 

23 

 

issues & challenges 

Barre City has identified the following housing challenges and issues that need to be addressed to 
achieve our vision for a healthy future: 
 
1. Neighborhood Destabilization. There is anecdotal evidence that some of Barre City’s 

neighborhoods are experiencing destabilization. Our city’s distressed neighborhoods have higher 
percentage of rental properties owned by absentee landlords, a higher percentage of properties 
that are neglected or not properly maintained, and a higher rate of tenant turnover. These factors 
can become self-reinforcing within a neighborhood and can lead to a downward spiral in 
property values and quality of life. More than half of the homes in the city are rented rather than 
owned and rental housing is not evenly distributed. There are blocks that are predominately 
owner-occupied and those that are mostly renter-occupied. The low rate of homeownership and 
the increasing rate of resident turnover in some neighborhoods is fraying our city’s social fabric. 

 
2. Housing Quality. The perception that some of Barre City’s neighborhoods are in decline is largely 

driven by the condition and maintenance of homes. The most affordable housing tends to be in 
the neighborhoods closest to downtown, which are among the oldest in the city. These homes are 
most likely to need upgrades to make them more energy efficient or to remove hazards like lead-
based paint. While buyers may be able to purchase a house in Barre City, they may not have the 
additional resources necessary to repair or maintain their home, particularly if it is an older 
structure with a backlog of deferred maintenance. Rents in Barre City are largely driven by the 
HUD Fair Market rates and many landlords believe that at those rental rates there would not be 
an adequate return on their investment if they made significant improvements. Additionally, 
landlords who receive fixed rents through state or federal programs have little incentive to make 
improvements beyond what is needed to meet minimum standards. Buildings that are allowed 
to deteriorate decline in value, depress the value of surrounding properties, and generally make 
a neighborhood less desirable. More than half of the homes in Barre City were built before 1940 
and most of the city’s housing is located in established neighborhoods that formed 50 or more 
years ago. Our older housing stock needs regular repair and upgrades to provide residents with 
a safe and healthy place to live and contribute to neighborhood quality of life.  

 
3. Demand for City Services. The amount of rental housing, and housing for very low-income 

households or populations with special needs in Barre City has increased demand for city 
services, particularly police and emergency response. The cost of providing these city services is 
borne primarily by property taxpayers, many of whom perceive that those who pay higher city 
taxes tend to use less services, while those who pay lower city taxes use more services. A balanced 
housing stock and a broader distribution of wealth is essential to ensure our tax base is adequate 
to support the provision of city services necessary to maintain a healthy community with a good 
quality of life. 

strengths & opportunities 

Barre City and its partners have already acted to address housing issues, and there remain many 
strengths and opportunities we can build upon to continue those efforts as we strive to achieve our 
vision for a healthy future: 

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 27



 

24 

 
1. Support and Programs. The city and several partner organizations are available to assist 

current or potential residents with a variety of housing issues in Barre City. Downstreet Housing 
and Community Development (Downstreet) operates a NeighborWorks HomeOwnership Center 
in Barre City and administers a variety of programs for homebuyers from education to grants for 
income-eligible households. Downstreet also offers assistance with home improvements to 
income-eligible households. Barre Housing Authority, Washington County Mental Health, 
Capstone Community Action Council (Capstone), the Good Samaritan Haven, and others also 
provide housing-related support and programs in the city. (A more complete list of programs and 
services is included on page 3-8 of this plan.) 
 

2. Affordable Housing. Barre City is an affordable community to purchase or rent a home. Much of 
the city’s historic housing stock is composed of modest, single-family homes on small lots – what 
would now be described as workforce housing – and these homes provide some of the best 
opportunities for first-time homebuyers and affordable homeownership in the region. The 
median sale price of a primary home in Barre City has been at least $40,000 lower than the county 
average and $70,000 lower than the state average throughout the past decade. Rents are also 
affordable at a median average of $715/month and there is an ample supply of rental housing. 
Our city is a very affordable place for younger people to get started in and older people to 
downsize and retire to.  This is something that should be marketed to a broader audience. 
 

3. Rental Registration Inspection Programs. Barre City has an ordinance that requires annual 
registration of all rental units and establishes minimum standards for rental housing. Barre City 
has operated a rental housing inspection program since 2004 to maintain a minimum housing 
quality level. In 2012, the Barre City Fire Department’s Code Enforcement Office took over 
responsibility for the inspection program from the Building Department in order to increase staff 
capacity for this program. Rental units are inspected every 4 years presently, and each rental unit 
has been inspected at least twice now.  There are typical issues with landowners making 
appointments for inspection or for follow-up, but overall the City feels this program is running 
smoothly.  
 

4. Taxes. Barre City has local tax stabilization programs for residential properties being 
substantially improved by locking-in their lower pre-renovation assessments for up to 10 years. 
Barre City is the only community in the state with a local tax stabilization program that applies 
to both the municipal property tax and the education property tax. Additionally, within the state-
recognized designated downtown, property owners may be eligible for state income tax credits 
for building improvements. 
 

5. Public Infrastructure and Services. Barre City has public water and sewer infrastructure, and 
both systems have capacity available. Cell phone service and broadband internet service are both 
available throughout the city. The city’s parking permit system allows for overnight parking for 
downtown residents in city-owned lots, although the number of spaces designated for overnight 
or long-term parking may need to be increased as the amount of downtown housing increases. 
The lack of dedicated parking for some downtown buildings may be a disincentive for increasing 
the number of upper floor apartments.  
 

6. Regulations and Permitting. It is possible to build housing in Barre City at much higher 
densities than in most Vermont communities and there remains land suitable for new 
construction and infill development. The city has a zoning administrator available to assist 
applicants with navigating the regulatory and permitting system. Barre City has increased what 

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 28



 

25 

development activities can be reviewed administratively by staff and be approved without 
requiring a DRB hearing. 

 

goals & strategies 

Barre City has established the following housing goals and strategies in order to achieve our vision 
for a healthy future: 
 
1. For Barre City to encourage new residential development as part of an effort to reverse 

recent declines in the city’s population and further the state’s planning goal of maintaining 
the historic settlement pattern of compact village and urban centers separated by rural 
countryside. 

 
A. Plan to accommodate much of the city’s new housing downtown. 

 
A-1. Promote new mixed-use development and rehabilitation of existing buildings that 

includes residences on the upper floors. 
 

B. Allow for mixed-use redevelopment of existing commercial and industrial buildings, 
particularly projects that preserve historic downtown buildings and granite sheds. 

 
C. Continue allowing the creation of accessory dwellings within existing homes or outbuildings 

as required by state law. 
 

D. Continue support of Downstreet Housing’s endeavors in the city. 
 
2. For Barre City to promote investment in new residential construction, and in the 

maintenance and rehabilitation of the city’s existing housing stock. 
 

A. Provide a user-friendly environment that encourages residential developers to invest and 
construct within the city. 

 
A-1. Work in partnership with landowners and developers to overcome hurdles, such as the 

ownership of ‘paper streets’ or the need for infrastructure upgrades, that are 
preventing infill development on vacant lots in the city. 

 
B. Encourage the maintenance of the city’s existing housing stock and the rehabilitation of 

deteriorating or substandard housing. 
 

B-1. Continue efforts to improve the quality of rental housing in the city and to ensure that 
residents do not live in substandard, unsafe or unhealthy conditions by maintaining our 
rental registration and inspection programs, and strengthening our rental housing 
codes and ordinances. 

 
B-2. Continue to offer municipal tax stabilization for major improvements to residential 

property and increase public awareness of this program. 
 

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 29



 

26 

B-3. Support efforts and programs to improve the energy efficiency of homes in Barre City, 
particularly those focused on upgrades to rental and affordable housing. 

 
C. Recognize that the city has a finite amount of open land suitable for residential development 

and encourage well-planned development that makes efficient use of this limited resource. 
 
3. For Barre City to stabilize, protect and enhance the character of residential neighborhoods 

and the quality of life they provide for residents. 
 

A. Ensure that infill development within existing neighborhoods will be harmonious with the 
scale, density and character of nearby homes. 
 

B. Manage the conversion of single-family homes to multi-family or non-residential uses in 
order to minimize impacts on neighborhood character and quality of life. 
 

C. Provide opportunities for small-scale, neighborhood-oriented shops and services within 
walking distance of most of the city’s residential areas. 

 
D. Maintain and improve playgrounds, greenspace and parks in the smaller neighborhoods. 

 
E. Spur private investment in the preservation, renewal and renovation of homes and 

neighborhoods to avoid potential decline. 
 

D-1. Monitor vacancies, rental inspection results and property maintenance/building code 
enforcement actions to direct revitalization efforts towards struggling neighborhoods. 

 
4. For Barre City to have a more balanced and diverse housing stock, while remaining a 

community where working people can afford to buy or rent a home. 
 
A. Maintain Barre City’s role as community where residents working in the city and region can 

afford to buy or rent a home. 
 

A-1. Encourage preservation of the city’s existing supply of ‘starter homes’ and new home 
construction to serve the first-time homebuyer market. 

 
A-2. Promote programs and strategies that provide assistance with housing costs for low- 

and moderate-income households. 
 
A-3. Promote programs and strategies that help control rising housing costs. 

 
B. Maintain a rate of homeownership in Barre City that results in at least 50% of properties in 

each neighborhood being owner-occupied. 
 

B-1. Promote programs and strategies that provide assistance to current renters who are 
capable of and interested in buying a home. 

 
B-2. Promote programs and strategies to encourage owner-occupied rental properties. 

 
C. Promote residential development that responds to the needs of people across all the city’s 

economic and social groups. 

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 30



 

27 

 
C-1. Expand the housing choices available to buyers in Barre City to include options other 

than single-family detached homes (townhouses, row houses, condominium units in 
mixed-use buildings, etc.). 

 
C-2. Allow for and encourage development of alternatives to fee-simple home ownership 

and for-profit rentals such as community land trusts, limited-equity condominiums and 
cooperatives. 

 
C-3. Include housing units at a variety of price points within new residential developments 

and downtown mixed-use buildings. 
 
C-4. Facilitate the integration of households with various incomes into all neighborhoods 

and the dispersal of affordable housing throughout the city. 
 
D. Maintain an adequate supply of housing that can provide those with limited means, 

disabilities or other special needs a safe, stable and healthy place to live. 
 

D-1. Offer residents an opportunity to live in economically and socially diverse 
neighborhoods. 

 
D-2. Distribute housing targeted to a particular population group (elderly housing, 

subsidized housing, group homes, etc.) among the city’s neighborhoods and avoid 
clustering such housing within any single neighborhood. 

 
D-3. Encourage a more balanced distribution of affordable and special needs housing among 

Central Vermont municipalities. 
 
D-4. Balance any loss of affordable housing due to downtown redevelopment and 

revitalization projects with creation of equivalent affordable units within new buildings 
and/or distributed around the city. 

 

next steps 

Barre City should pursue the following actions in order to achieve our vision for a healthy future: 
 
1. Undertake a study to document the occupancy of downtown buildings and recommend 

strategies to encourage use of upper floors for housing. 
 
Status: No action taken to date. 
 
Timing: 2022 
 
Partners: Barre Partnership, City Assessment Department, City Planner, Planning Commission, 
Downstreet Housing 
 
Notes: This study should include an inventory and assessment of the condition, use and 
occupancy of the upper floors of buildings in the downtown business district. Based on the 

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 31



 

28 

findings, recommendations should be developed to increase the utilization of upper floor space 
for housing. 
 

2. Implement a pilot program that would assist with the purchase and management of 
owner-occupied rental properties in the city. 
 
Status: No action taken to date. 
 
Timing: 2023 
 
Partners: Downstreet Housing; Capstone Community Action Council 
 
Notes: Downstreet has indicated an interest in partnering with the city on a program that would 
help buyers purchase and manage owner-occupied rental properties. A new source of funding 
would need to be found to support the program as it would not be eligible under Downstreet’s 
current funding streams. 
 

3. Amend the city’s Minimum Housing Code to incorporate stronger and more effective 
standards. 
 
Status: No action taken to date. 
 
Timing: 2023 
 
Partners: City Planner, City Fire Department, Vermont Department of Health, Downstreet 
Housing, City Attorney, City Council 
 
Notes: Barre City has a Minimum Housing Ordinance that could be further amended to 
strengthen the city’s minimum housing standards. The current code is based on the HUD 
minimum standards. Consideration should be given to incorporating additional standards 
related to energy-efficiency and healthy living conditions. The Vermont Healthy Homes Program 
has produced a rating tool and reference manual that could be consulted, and Burlington’s 
housing code could be used as a model. 
 
 

4. Encourage home-sharing as a means of keeping larger single-family homes intact. 
 
Status: No action to date. 
 
Timing: 2021 
 
Partners: City Planner, Downstreet Housing and Community Development; HomeShare Now 
 
Notes: Encouraging home-sharing is one way to avoid conversion of larger homes to rental or 
multi-family units and would provide additional benefit of helping residents afford and invest in 
the older housing stock that was at one time prime single-family housing. Rental units within the 
neighborhoods have begun to depreciate neighboring homes and neighborhoods making them 
less desirable. 
 

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 32



 

29 

5. Consider implementing a Housing Preservation Loan Program to help with the repairs 
needed to homes in the City. 

 
Status:  No action to date. 
 
Timing:  2020-2021 
 
Partners:  City Council, City Clerk/Treasurer, City Finance Director, City Planner 
 
Notes:  Montpelier’s Housing Preservation Loan Program could serve as a model guide to 
implementing something similar for Barre City. 

benchmarks 

Barre City should measure progress towards achieving our vision for a healthy future against the 
following benchmarks: 
 
1. Percentage of Barre City households spending more than 30% of their income on housing. 

Households that spend too much of their income on housing often find themselves unable to 
afford other necessities such as food, health care, transportation, child care, and clothing. The 
generally accepted rule of thumb is that housing expenses (including utilities and taxes) should 
constitute no more than 30% of household income. Source: Vermont Housing Finance Agency’s 
Housing Data 
 
In 2010:  44% 
In 2017:  48% 
Target for 2025:  35% 
 

2. Home ownership rate in Barre City. Home ownership provides many benefits including tax 
benefits, collateral for financial emergencies, and opportunities for wealth creation. Home 
ownership is associated with increased residential stability and creates incentives for personal 
investment in home maintenance, neighborhood improvement, and community involvement. 
Source: US Census Bureau, Decennial Census 
 
In 2010:  43% 
In 2017:  48% 
Target for 2024:  50% 
 

3. Percentage of rental housing in Barre City that is owner-occupied. Owner-occupied rental 
properties are less likely to have tenants that are disruptive to the neighborhood (noisy, 
disorderly conduct, criminal activity, trash accumulation) because the landlord lives nearby and 
will likely not want to live next to a bad neighbor. Owner-occupied rental properties can make 
home ownership more affordable both through the direct rental income and through various tax 
benefits. Source: Barre City Grand List 
 
In 2010:  20% 
In 2019:  23% 
Target for 2025:  25% 

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 33



 

30 

 
4. Percentage of rental units in Barre City inspected and brought up to code each year. Homes 

that are poorly designed, constructed or maintained can make residents sick. Homes with 
inadequate heating or ventilation can lead to the growth of mold and dust mites, resulting in 
asthma and respiratory allergies. Older homes may have lead-based paint that can cause lead 
poisoning, particularly in young children. The likelihood of physical hazards in a home is related 
to housing affordability. Source: Barre City Fire Department 
 
In 2010:  unknown 
In 2018:  46% 
Target for 2024:  75% 
 

  

Planning Commission Packet 
Page 34


	Agenda
	Sept 12, 2024 Minutes for approval
	Encore Renewable Energy BESS Project work
	Municipal Plan Section 2: Housing Section



